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P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 

9:43 A.M. 

JUDGE NELSON: We'll take appearances so 

that we show who's here. 

MR. GULLAND: Good morning. Your Honor. 

I'm Gene Gulland. I'm here on behalf of the 

Applicants. 

MR. ROSENTHAL: Michael Rosenthal on 

behalf of the Applicants. 

MR. NORTON: Gerald Norton, the same. 

MR. MULLINS: William Mullins on behalf of 

Kansas City Southern Railway Company. 

MR. FOSHEE: David Foshee, the same. 

MS. O'BRIEN: Kelley O'Brien on behalf of 

the Burlington Northern Railroad Company and Atchison, 

Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company. 

MR. BILLIEL: Michael B i l l i e l , Department 

of Justice. 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l right, the dispute this 

moming then i s KSC's interrogatory 62 and 63. I s 

that correct? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. Judge 

Nelson. 

JUDGE NELSON: Al l right. Mr. Mullins? 

MR. MULLINS: We're here today to present 

NEAL R. GROSS 
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to you another example of how discovery has led to the 

need to f i l e further discovery and to narrowly focus 

our discovery requests, specifically interrogatories 

62 and 63. 

I f I can walk you through a l i t t l e b i t of 

the history of these interrogatories, we served these 

interrogatories on January the I l t h . 

Applicants claim to not have received 

these interrogatories u n t i l January 25th, for whatever 

reason. 

I ' l l accept the fact that they didn't do 

that, but they were served on January — 

JUDGE NELSON: I don't care about a l l 

that, Mr. Mullins. 

MR. MULLINS: — I l t h . 

JUDGE NELSON: Let's get down to what i t 

is you want and why you want i t and why they won't let 

you have i t . 

MR. MULLINS: Certainly. The bottom line 

of — the bottom line of these interrogatories are 

questions related to specific information regarding 50 

specific shippers. And I ' l l t e l l hov ve came up vith 

these shippers. 

You, before, have told us about 

interrogatories 21 and 22 and other interrogatories 

NEAL R. GROSS 
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j about how they've been too broad, and we needed to 

--̂  2 narrow and focus our requests. 

3 On January Ilth, when we served these 

4 interrogatories, that's precisely what we did. What 

5 we did is we took the traffic tape*-., — the traffic 

6 tapes are the tapes that UP and SP provide that have 

7 al.'. the information about a l l the shipments. 

8 What we did is we took those traffic 

9 tapes. We looked at the corridors that the KCS is 

10 interested in, we looked at the shippers in those 

11 corridors. We then — out of that universe of 

12 shippers, we then narrowed the universe to only 

13 shippers of coal, grain, chemicals, which are 

14 narrowing parameters which you, yourself, have 

15 established, and we came up with a l i s t of 50 

16 shippers. 

17 We then attached that l i s t of these 50 

18 shippers and filed these interrogatories on 62 and 63. 

19 Applicants are claiming that ve are asking 

20 the seuse question that ve asked in interrogatories 21 

21 and 22. 

22 And because ve entered into a stipulation 

23 in 21 and 22, that they don't have to ansver 62 and 

24 63. 

25 My response to that i s that (1) yes, i t is 

NEAL R. GROSS 
COURT REPORTS'̂ . ANO TRANSCRIBERS 

1323 RHOOE ISLANO AVENUE. N.W. 
(208)2344439 WASHINQTON. O.C. 20006 (202)234-4433 
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1 the same question, but more importantly, and the 

2 important part i s , i s that these are different 

3 shippers. 

4 And these are shippers that were narrowed 

5 and got from the t r a f f i c tapes. These are coal, grain 

6 and chemical shippers who met a l l of 'our requests. 

7 JUDGE NELSON: What happened with 21 and 

8 22? What was the resolution of that? They say i t was 

9 a stipulation. 

10 MR. MULLINS: Yes. What happened with 

11 that i s in 21 and 22, we had — we had i n i t i a l l y asked 

12 for a l l shippers. You, of course, you know, said, you 

13 know, that's ridiculous. They claimed burden and a l l 

14 that. 

15 So we narrowed i t to a l i s t of 200 

16 shippers. 

17 JUDGE NELSON: Well, I didn't ju s t say 

18 that because I woke up in the moming feeling — 

19 MR. MULLINS: No, no, you had — 

20 JUDGE NELSON: There was a shoving by the 

21 Other side — 

22 MR. MULLINS: Absolutely, absolutely. 

23 JUDGE NELSON: — vhlch persuaded me that 

24 that vould be an undue burden. 

25 MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. And you vere — 

NE^L R. GROSS 
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and sc taking — taking that, we understand that and 

we tried to work with that. So we narrowed i t to a 

l i s t of 200 shippers. 

At the time, we didn't have the t r a f f i c 

tapes. We didn't have a l l of the specific information 

that we have now in order to narrow that l i s t . 

In fact, quite frankly, we took some of 

these shippers basically from this group that i s 

opposed to the merger. We just l i s t e d a l l of their 

shippers. 

We didn't — we didn't — we weren't able 

to use the t r a f f i c tapes back in December when we 

i n i t i a l l y f i l e d ana did this as we have in the January 

I l t h . 

But in any event, what happened then was 

we narrowed i t to a l i s t of 200. they continued to 

object to the burden. And we came here in front of 

you, and you ordered them to produce that. 

Wc would — we than — you ordered them, 

pursuant to the narrowed l i s t , you said — you asked 

thea to go through their f i l e s and produce i t , as long 

as i t vas coal, chemical and grain. 

JUDGE NELSON: This I s for hov many 

shippers? 

(208)2344433 

MR. MULLINS: This is — this vas for 
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1 about 2 00 shippers, and then we narrowed i t even 

2 further between agreement between the parties. 

3 JUDGE NELSON: All right. 

4 MR. MULLINS: We then came in front of you 

5 again because they were claiming that our universe in 

6 revised interrogatories — we served revised 

7 interrogatories pursuant to your order — 

8 JUDGE NELSON: Which cut the universe to 

9 100? 

10 MR. MULLINS: — which cut the universe 

11 down. 

12 JUDGE NELSON: Then what happened? 

13 MR. MULLINS: They claimed — they caune in 

14 here and claimed burden again, or they were cr-..^.i in 

15 here to claim burden. But before that, we agised to 

16 enter into a stipulation with the parties to work — 

17 and i t ' s a general stipulation. 

18 And i t didn't cover the specific 100 

19 shippers. I t didn't cover any — i t was a just a 

20 general point stipulation. 

21 Nov vhen ve entered into that stipulation, 

22 ve had served interrogatories 62 and 63, and they had 

23 interrogatories 62 and f3. 

24 JUDGE NELSON: Did you have the traffic 

25 tapes at that time? 

NEAL R. GROSS 
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MR. MULLINS: Yes, we did, and we were 

able to use the t r a f f i c tapes to come up with t h i s 

l i s t of shippers. 

JUDGE NELSON: Which l i s t ? 

MR. MULLINS: This l i s t t h a t was i i 62 and 

63. 

JUDGE NELSON: No. I mean, at the time of 

the s t i p u l a t i o n — 

MR. MULLINS: Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: — did you have the t r a f f i c 

tapes? 

MR. MULLINS: Yes, we d i d . And that's hov 

we — that's hov we came up v i t h the l i s t t h a t ve 

f i l e d i n 62 and 63, because we had already — by the 

time we agreed t o the s t i p u l a t i o n , we had already 

f i l e d 62 and 63. 

JUDGE NELSON: So you — you have nothing 

more nov, or vhen you f i l e d 62 and 63, than you had at 

the tine you entered into the stipulation regarding 21 

and 22? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: Did I get that correct? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l right. 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. 

NEAL R. GROSS 
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JUDGE NELSON: So they say t h a t should 

h-. /e been the end of i t ? 

MR. MULLINS: They say that should have 

been the end of i t , that they entered into the 

stipulation on 21 and 22, and therefore, they should 

not have to answer 62 and 63. 

JUDGE NELSON: These 50 that you want now, 

were they included within the 100 that you would have 

sought before? 

MR. MULLINS: There may be some, yes. But 

by far, the vast majority were not? 

JUDGE NELSON: Why Ls that? 

MR. MULLINS: Because at the time, we 

didn't have the specific information. We weren't able 

to go through the t r a f f i c tapes, look at the corridors 

that we vere specifically interested i n , and come up 

with the coal, grain, chemical shippers that — that 

you have ordered us to do. 

JUDGE NELSON: In other words, you had the 

tapes, but hadn't yet had a chance to analyze them? 

MR. MULLINS: We had — ve had the tapes, 

that's correct. And ve — ve had analyzed — ve vere 

in the process of analyzing then. And some of the 

shippers that vere included in 21 and 22 vere fron the 

traffic tapes. But ve — 
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JUDGE NELSON: When did you get the tapes 

MR. MULLINS: I believe — 

JUDGE NELSON: — approximately? 

MR. MULLINS: — we got the tapes probably 

early December, late November, and — 

JUDGE NELSON: Let's say December 1 for 

sake of argvtment. 

MR. MULLINS: Right, okay. 

JUDGE NELSON: And when was the 

stipulation regarding interrogatories 21 and 22? 

MR. MULLINS: I believe that was on 

January — January 26th. Is that right, Mr. Norton? 

MR. NORTON; Yes. 

MR. MULLINS: Yes, January 26th. 

JUDGE NELSON: And then when did you serve 

interrogatories 62 and 63? 

MR. MULLINS: January Ilt h . And remind 

you that — that the interrogatories 21 and 22 were 

served eventually vay back in November. But pursuant 

to your revised request, ve had served those on the 

29th, the revised interrogatories. 

JUDGE NELSON: So then vhen you served 62 

and 63 on January Ilth — 

MR. MULLINS: Right. 
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JUDGE NELSON: — by that time, you had 

analyzed the tapes? 

MR. MULLINS: We had f u l l y analyzed the 

tapes — 

JUDGE NELSON: Knew the corridors and knew 

the shippers and so forth? 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l rig h t . So why doesn't 

this stipulation of the 26th preclude everything that 

MR. MULLINS: Because — 

JUDGE NELSON: — preceded it? 

MR. MULLINS: Because — 

JUDGE NELSON: That's the i r position, I 

guess. 

MR. MULLINS; That is their position. The 

stipulation of the 26th, Your Honor, only dealt with 

the general notion of competition as contained vithin 

interrogatories 21 and 22. 

I t didn't deal vith any specific shippers, 

despite the fact that you had ordered them to produce 

the f i l e s for specific shippers In 21 and 22. Because 

we, in a spirit of cooperation vith the Applicants, 

were villin g to vork vith then on developing a 

stipulation, we agreed to the stipulation. 
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But we agreed to the s t i p u l a t i o n knowing 

tha t 62 and 63 were out there. Applicants themselves 

knew tha t 62 and 63 were out that. And i n f a c t , when 

they entered i n t o the s t i p u l a t i o n , they didn't stand 

up i n f r o n t of you. Judge, and say, "By the way. 

Judge, t h i s s t i p u l a t i o n also covers interrogatories 62 

and 63." 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, x'm — the version 

I ' - I reading of the s t i p u l a t i o n s i s set out i n a l e t t e r 

to me from Mr. Roach, I guess i t i s . Yes, Mr. Roach's 

l e t t e r t o me dated February 22, which I received by 

fax. 

I t was not here when Ms. Diciano l e f t vork 

yesterday, which would be somewhere a f t e r f i v e 

o'clock. So I don't know exactly — i t was 1747 i t 

a r r i v e d here, which by Army time means 5:47. 

In any event, I got i t t h i s morning. And 

on pages — pages three and four are paragraphs that 

c i t e the stipulation. Can you look at that and t e l l 

me i f thic — i f that's a l l there i s to the 

stipulation vould be those tvo paragraphs? 

MR. IfULLINS: That i s a l l there i s to the 

stipulation. I t vasn't specific to any specific 

shippers or any specific corridors. 

I f you — i f you look at those — 
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1 JUDGE NELSON: Was there any language 

2 about th i s st ipulation sa t i s fy ing other 

3 interrogatories? 

4 MR. MULLINS: No s i r . 

5 JUDGE NELSON: Or being regarded as 

6 waiving other — 

7 MR. MULLINS; Not at a l l , none. 

8 JUDGE NELSON; So that, I ' d have to read 

9 in here, I suppose? 

10 MR. MULLINS: That's right. And i f I can 

11 — 

12 JUDGE NELSON: Go ahead. 

13 MR. MULLINS: — explain to you — 

14 JUDGE NELSON: Get a l i t t l e more into what 

15 you'd l i k e to shov. 

16 MR. MULLINS: Sure. And that's vhy — 

17 JUDGE NELSON: Maybe get some examples 

18 from the tapes. 

19 MR. MULLINS: Right, that 's vhat I ' d l ike 

20 to — to get into right nov i s the relevance of why 

21 th i s i s important to ICC — to the — to the STB 

22 decision making process. 

23 I t ' s a l i t t l e hard to remember to c a l l i t 

24 the STB vhen I vorked there for s ix and a hal f years 

25 as the ICC. 
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But not — Your Honor, not — February 

15th, last week, the ICC issued various decisions 

regarding various things. 

And in one of those decisions, they 

established the c r i t e r i a for those parties who want to 

request that conditions be imposed on the transaction, 

conditions to protect competition. 

And one of the conditions i s that they 

would not impose conditions on a railroad 

consolidation unless i t found that the consolidation 

may produce effects harmful to the public interest, 

such as a significant reduction of competition in an 

affected market. 

And then there's a i l these specific 

c r i t e r i a that you have to meet when you'ra trying to 

request the ICC to impose a condition. 

The stipulation i s a general stipulation. 

The ICC wants you to provide specific evidence as to 

specific shippers in specific corridors that are — 

JUDGE NELSON: Get dovn to some — give me 

an example of something you have gleaned from the 

tapes vith regard to specific corridors and specific 

shippers about vhich you're seeking to probf« deeper. 

NR. MULLINS: Sure. For example, ve vant 

to knov i f there i s a shipper vhc ships betveen, l e t ' s 
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say Houston and San Antonio, a l l right? There's only 

two railroads going between Houston and — 

JUDGE NELSON; Does anyone have the map? 

I have i t upstairs, but i f — Mr. Rosenthal, you look 

l i k e yo'*i might have i t there. 

MR. ROSENTHAL: No, I didn't bring th'^t 

volume. 

JUDGE NELSON: You're usually well-armed 

here. 

MR. MULLINS: He is, ha is normally. 

JUDGE NELSON: Is this going to be so 

simple that I ' l l get i t right away or — 

MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

JUDGE NELSON: — or would i t be useful 

for me to have the map in front? What do counsel for 

the Applicants think? 

MR. NORTON: Let's try i t and see hov far 

we get. 

JUDGE NELSON: The map is only tvo minutes 

atrey, but ~ 

MR. MULLINS: Just ~ I ' l l pick an easier 

corridor for you, okay, instead of Houston. Houston -

- I can pick any corridor. 

JUDGE NELSON: Pick — no, I don't vant 

any. Nov you said you've identified — 
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MR. MULLINS: Right, yes. 

JUDGE NELSON; — 50 shippers — 

MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

JUDGE NELSON: — as a result of studies 

of specific corridors — 

MR. MULLINS; That's righ t . 

JUDGE NELSON: — and specific shippers. 

MR. MULLINS: That's righ t . 

JUDGE NELSON: And I want to hear — 

MR. MULLINS: Okay. 

JUDGE NELSON: — for hypothetical 

purposes — 

MR. MULLINS: Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: — and t h i s , of course, 

w i l l be your best one — 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. 

MR. MULLINS: — what i t i s ar4d where you 

hope to go v i t h i t . 

MR. MULLINS: Okay. 

JUDGE NELSON: And I can get a better 

understanding because the argument on the other side 

is really soaething like analogous to lav of the case, 

vhich i s , at most, a discretionary doctrine. 

And i f I've got SOM discretion, then I've 

got to knov the circunstances i n vhich they're urging 

NEAL R. GROSS 
COURT RCPORTCRS ANO TRANSCRI8CR» 

1383 RHOOC ISLANO AVENUC N.W. 

(201) 234443a WASHINQTON. O.C 20006 (208) 2344433 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1367 

me to — you would be urging me to use i t and say, in 

effect, to depart from law of the case 

MR. MULLINS: Sure. 

JUDGE NELSON; I f the stipulation rises to 

that level. 

MR. MULLINS; Sure. 

JUDGE NELSON; If i t doesn't, then this is 

an ordinary dispute. 

MR. MULLINS; Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: Either way, I need to knov 

more about i t . 

MR. MULLINS: Sure. Let's take the 

corridor between Houston and Nev Orleans. 

JUDGE NELSON; Yes s i r . 

MR. MULLINS: There's only tvo railroads 

that ship between Houstca — only tvo vays to get 

betveen — from Houston to Nev Orleans: UP or SP. 

JUDGE NELSON: What goods move betveen 

those tvo terminals? 

MR. MULLINS: A lot of goods. But vhat — 

r Men, ve — ve could t e l l you — through their 

traffic tapes, ve vould be able to t e l l you exactly 

vhat the — every good that moved betveen Houston and 

Nev Orleans. 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, don't ve knov? 
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MR. MULLINS: I don't have the information 

here, but we do knov, yes. We could — we know that. 

And that's exactly how we got these shippers. 

JUDGE NELSON; You don't know enough right 

now to talk in terms of a specific commodity? 

MR. MULLINS: No, I do. Your Honor. Let 

me explain. What we did is we took the universe of 

the shippers that are shipping between Houston and Nev 

Orleans — 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes. 

MR. MULLINS: — on the UP line, okay? We 

came up vith a l i s t of a l l the shippers shipping 

betveen Houston and Nev Orleans on the UP line, okay, 

and a l l the shippers on the SP line shipping between 

Houston and New Orleans. 

And then we gleaned out of that universe 

of shippers those that are related to coal, chemicals 

or grain. 

JUDGE NÎ LSON: So there are cars of coal, 

ctaeaicils and grain moving betveen the tvo cities? 

MR. MULLINS: Correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: Which vay i s most of this 

flov? Or i s i t fairly equal? 

MR. MULLINS: Most of i t probably — most 

of i t flovs from Houston to Nev Orleans, and then 
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sometimes on to other destinations. But most of i t 

flows from Houston to New Orleans. 

JUDGE NELSON: Both are big port cities. 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

JUDGE NELSON; And yet, more stuff is 

coming in or being shipped out from Houston? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. And so 

then, what — what ve vant — 

JUDGE NELSON: And there — i n a l l three: 

coal, grain and chemicals? 

MR. MULLINS; That's correct. Coal i s 

probably the least amount of commodities going betveen 

Houston and Hev Orleans. Chemicals is the big, big 

commodity going betveen Houston and — and Nev 

Orleans. 

JUDGE NELSON: Of the three, that's the 

big one? 

MR. MULLINS: Yes, that's correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: What kind of chemicals? 

MR. MULLINS: Plastics — 

JUDGE NELSON: We've had a l l of these 

plastics people in. 

MR. MULLINS: That's right. Plas^:ics i s 

a huge one, a l l kinds of ferti l i z e r s and — 

JUDGE NELSON: Let's go off the record for 
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a moment. 

(Whereupon, the proceedings went off the 

record at 9:56 a.m. and resumed at 9:56 a.m.) 

JUDGE NELSON: Back on the record. All 

right, so let's envision carloads of chemicals moving, 

let us say, from Houston to New Orleans. 

MR. MULLINS: Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: Wlidt happens to these goods 

once they get to Nev Orleans? 

MR. MULLINS: They are either used by the 

person there in Nev Orleans to make further products 

or they're in an intermediate process or, you knov, 

for example, i f i t ' s gasoline, i t vould go to a 

wholesale gasoline storage tank. 

And then from there, you know, the trucks 

will take i t to the gasoline station. 

JUDGE NELSON: Ic« gasoline included in the 

category of — 

MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

JUDGE NELSON: — Chemical products? 

MR. MULLINS: Yes, i t i s . 

JUDGE NELSOM: So they'r« moving in tank 

cars? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: Al l right. And you've got 
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two railroads who are competing with each other? 

MR. MULLINS: Correct. 

JUDGE NET SON; Okay. 

MR. MULLINS: Shipping gasoline from 

Houston to Nev Orleans. 

JUDGE NELSON: Okay. 

MR. MULLINS; What we want to know is i f 

there's — for example, in interrogatory number 62, we 

want to knov i f there was a shipper on the UP line, a 

shipper of ga^i^line on the UP line, who said — who 

went to UP and said, "UP, you've got to lover my rate. 

And the reason why you've got to lower my rate i s 

because my competitor down there on the SP line who is 

shipping gasoline to Nev Orleans, is beating the pants 

off of me." 

"And I've got to get a lover 

transportation rate in order to compete in the 

marketplace." 

And UP say3, "Well, okay." You knov, the 

marketing people look at i t , and they look at a l l the 

costs and everything. And then they decide vhether or 

not they can lover the rate. 

JUDGE NELSON: Suppose you prove a l l that? 

MR. MULLINS: I f ve prove a l l that, Your 

Honor, that i s the absolute key to the ICC's decision 
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competition i n the Houston to New Orleans corr i d o r . 

And that's precisely why these Applicants 

are s i t t i n g here — 

JUDGE NELSON: Suppose there is? 

MR. MULLINS: Suppose there i s . i f we can 

establish f o r the ICC that t h i s type of competition, 

both i n 61 and 62, i s occurring and i s occurring with 

s p e c i f i c shippers and spe c i f i c c o r r i d o r s , the ICC i s 

going t o say that that's a tvo-to-one c o r r i d o r and 

that somebody needs access i n there t o keep i t two 

railroa d s a f t e r the merger. 

JUDGE NELSON: In the example you gave, i s 

i t not a two-to-one corridor? 

MR. MULLINS: No, i t ' s not. And 

Applicants — 

JUDGE NELSON: Why? 

MR. MULLINS: — have not defined i t as a 

tvo-to-one corridor? 

JUDGE NELSON: Why i s n ' t i t ? 

MR. MULLINS: Because they define tvo-to-

one as a point, as jus t a point in Houston. And this 

i s the big — and th i s i s getting into the merits of 

the case that the ICC v i l l decide t h i s issue. 

And ve a l l — ve a l l knov here vhat the 
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big argum.ent i s going to be — 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, I don't want t o t r y 

3 merits. 

4 MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

5 JUDGE NELSON: But I have to understand i t 

6 enough to see why we're in this example. 

7 MR. MULLINS; Okay. This — t h e i r 

8 argument i s that i t ' s not a two-to-one oecause they 

9 don't look at corridors, Your Honor. They look at 

10 points. 

11 And by "points," I mean they look a t 

12 Houston. They only look at Houston. And what they 

13 say i s w e l l , there are three r a i l r o a d s serving Houston 

14 because BN serves Houston and UP serves Houston and SP 

15 serves Houston. 

16 So that's not a two-to-one, that's a 

17 three-to-tvo. That's t h e i r argiunent. 

18 JUDGE NELSON: What happens vhen they look 

19 at Nev Orleans? 

20 MR. MULLINS: They say the same t h i n g . 

21 New OrleMS, they say, oh, that's a five-to-four 

22 because you've got four railroads going into Nev 

23 Orleans. 

24 JUDGE NELSON: They measure the railroads 

25 that serve a particular point — 
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MR. MULLINS: Correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: — t o t a l l y without 

reference to where the goods come from or go to? 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely, Your Honor. 

JUDGE NELSON; Simply an abstract 

arithmetical count — 

MR. MULLINS: That's absolutely r i g h t . 

JUDGE NELSON; — of the number of 

railroads in a particular c i t y . 

MR. MULLINS; That's correct. That's 

exactly what they do. And they're claiming that i n — 

and Mr. Roach, by the way, understands t o t a l l y what 

I'm talking about because Mr. Roach, i n the Wisconsin 

Central/Fox Valley Western merger case, he was 

representing Chicago Northwestern, he asked identical 

questions and wanted the identical information i n 

corridors. 

And I have his ovn vords here, Your Honor, 

i f you vant to read them vhere he, himself, said, 

"This i s c r i t l c l information to the ICC's decision 

Baking process, and ve need this information." 

And yet, they have the audacity to ̂ tand 

up here and say, "Well, ve can't give you that 

information. That's burdensome." And that's 

precisely the type of information the ICC looks at, 
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1 and they know i t too. 

2 And that i s why they're s i t t i n g here 

3 fighting a l l of th i s . 

4 JUDGE NELSON; Now this type of 

5 information that you just gave in t h i s hypothetical, 

6 th i s had some specificity to i t . 

7 MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

8 JUDGE NELSON: I t dealt with two places 

9 and i t dealt with a commodity, plastics. I don't see 

10 that kind of specificity at a l l in interrogatory 62 

11 and 63. 

12 MR. MULLINS: The spe c i f i c i t y comes by 

13 l i s t i n g the shippers i n the attachment and the 

14 corridors i n the — related to the — to the shippers. 

15 What we did is say there's 50 shippers in 

16 these corridors — 

17 JUDGE NELSON: Well, can I see that? 

18 MR. MULLINS: Sure, that's — that's 

19 attached to the interrogatories, and I ' l l give you a 

20 copy of the interrogatories. 

21 JUDGE NELSON: Well, I have 62 and 63 

22 here. 

23 MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

24 JUDGE NELSON: Oh, so where do I find t h i s 

25 specificity? 
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MR. MULLINS: I f I may approach, Your 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes, of course. 

MR. MULLINS: Right here. 

JUDGE NELSON: Oh. YOU see, I don't have 

that l i s t — 

MR. MULLINS: Okay. 

JUDGE NELSON: — unless I missed i t . 

MR. MULLINS: Well, there is certainly the 

JUDGE NELSON: I have here what is marked 

"Attachment 1" to KCS's t h i r d discovery requests, 

which I probably have somewhere in th i s p i l e of paper 

of t h i s case, but — I see. 

You see, what I usually do i s I vork from 

the response because the response sets out the 

interrogatory and then t e l l s me vhy they don't want 

you to have i t . 

So for a short-cut, I usually get the 

Whole picture by looking at the response, vhich is 

what I did here. And obviously, the response doesn't 

have your attachments. So let me look at this for a 

moment. 

(Pause.) 

JUDGE NELSON: Where the i s the example we 
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j u s t talked about? 

MR. MULLINS: Well f o r example, we know 

Houston — we know the shipper i n Houston — the f i r s t 

shipper i s A i r Products Chemical. 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, l e t ' s look at one to 

New Orleans. 

MR. MULLINS: Well, the — okay. The 

corridor betveen Houston and Nev Orleans i s l i s t e d as 

one of the corridors t h a t we're interested i n on 

Attachment 2. 

JUDGE NELSON: Attachment 2? 

MR. MULLINS: Yes. 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, what's one and two? 

MR. MULLINS: One i s the l i s t of shippers 

i n these cor r i d o r s t h a t we're interested i n — 

JUDGE NELSON; Oh, I see. 

MR. MULLINS: — and two i s the l i s t of 

the c o r r i d o r s . 

(Pause.) 

JUDGE NELSON: Are these big shippers? 

MR. MULLINS: They are very big shippers, 

most of then. 

JUDGE NELSON: You can identify thea and 

note ~ 
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1 
JUDGE NELSON: Well, some names I see and ' 

2 obviously know. Others I've never heard of in these 

3 court reforms. 

4 MR. MULLINS: Now realize, the reason — 

5 JUDGE ELSON: Which means nothing. I'm 

6 just — 

7 MR. MULLINS: Yes, these are — 

8 JUDGE NELSON: — looking for some 

9 assurance from you that you haven't got mom and pop 

10 grcceries thrown in here. 

11 MR. MULLINS: No, mom and pop groceries 

12 are not thrown in here. 

13 JUDGE NELSON: Just by accident from the 

14 tapes. 

15 MR. MULLINS: Well, there might be 

16 accidents. But I mean, we tried not to do that. And 

17 you knov, this is hov the shipper name appears in 

18 their case. 

19 So, Your Honor, ve have to, ourselves, try 

20 to figure out vhat the name of the shipper is from the 

21 tapes. 

22 JUDGE NELSON: I f ve see a shipper named 

23 Union Carbide or Pennzoll, ve can drav the inference 

24 that those are big customers. 

~^ 25 MR. MULLINS: That's correct. And you — 
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I mean, you can look at A l l i e d Signal, you know, Areo 

Chemical — 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes. 

MR. MULLINS: — Goodyear Ti r e , Georgia 

Pa c i f i c , you knov, Pennzoll, P h i l l i p s Chemical. These 

are not mom and pop shippers. 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l r i g h t , so we have 

sp e c i f i c shippers of sp e c i f i c goods of s p e c i f i c 

corridors. 

MR. MULLINS; That's correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: And t h e i r answer i s you 

sti p u l a t e d away a l l t h i s s t u f f ? 

MR. MULLINS: That's correct. And w© 

didn't. We st i p u l a t e d t o the general notion t h a t t h i s 

type of a competition occurs. 

JUDGE NELSON: Where i s the KCS operating 

i n a l l of this? What's the — 

MR. MULLINS: We don't operate in these 

corridors. 

JUDGE NELSON: I know that. So l e t ' s take 

— take Houston and Nev Orleans. Why do you care i f 

tvo railroads nov can monopolize that t r a f f i c ? 

MR. MULLINS: Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: What's i t got to do vith 

you? 

(208)2344433 
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MR. MULLINS: I ' l l t e l l you precisely what 

i t has And this is why KCS houses self-interest i n 

thi s case is because i f the Commission decides there 

is a mon poly between Houston and New Orleans, the 

Commission w i l l order the Applicants to provide access 

to another railroad. 

JUDGE NELSON: Aha, which you might be a 

candidate for. 

MR. MULLINS: Which we might be a 

candidate for. So we'll get to get new t r a f f i c and 

new shippers and serve from Houston to New Orleans, an 

area that we don't serve now. And — 

JUDGE NELSON: What i f i t tums out to be, 

oh, BN/SF, just to pick a name out of the hat? 

MR. MULLINS: And that's precisely — you 

know. Your Honor — 

JUDGE NELSON: That doesn't help you any. 

MR. MULLINS: No, hitting precisely on the 

problev In this case. We can spend — we're spending 

a l l this time and money and energy and millions of 

dollars here trying to prove that there's a monopoly 

betveen certain corridors. 

A l l the ICC does i s say another railroad 

has to get access i n that corridor. And the 

Applicants can turn right around and give that access 
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to BN/Santa Fe. 

And they've entered into an agreement with 

BN/Santa Fe that says, " I f additional access i s 

ordered, BN/Santa Fe gets to be the f i r s t guy." And 

we --

JUDGE NELSON; How does that help you? 

MR. MULLINS; I t doesn't help us. I t 

doesn't help us. 

JUDGE NELSON: So i f you prove this whole 

case, you may not get anything. 

MR. MULLINS; Theoretically, we may not 

get anything. But we have to go on the — you know, 

we could walk away tomorrow and say — say, you knov, 

forget i t , l e t the shippers do i t , you knov? 

JUDGE NELSON: Do you attack that aspect 

of the BN/Santa Fe agreement — 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

JUDGE NELSON: — that provides that i f 

further access i s ordered, BN/Santa Fe shall get f i r s t 

crack? 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. I mear., that — 

and they also entered into an agreement vith I l l i n o i s 

central that says i f BN/Santa Fe doesn't vant i t , 

I l l i n o i s Central gets i t . 

JUDGE NELSON: The Commission or Board 
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1 doesn't have to rccept that condition and rubber-stamp 

2 
1 

i t , do they? 

-.-̂  
3 

MR. MULLINS: No, but the Board doesn't 

4 like to go into private contracts and reverse private 

5 contracts. And so they have entered into a private 

6 contract — 

7 JUDGE NELSON: And no i f the Board 

8 endorses the private contract — 

9 MR. MULLINS: Right. 

10 JUDGE NELSON: — you're out anyvay. You 

11 could engage in months of discovery here and prove the 

12 monopoly, and never get a chance to enter that 

corridor. 

14 MR. MULLINS: Right, so — precisely. 

15 JUDGE NELSON: Then vhy are ve fighting 

16 about it? 

17 MR. MULLINS: Because ve're fighting about 

18 i t in the hope, the small hope, that (1) that ve can 

19 prove that there's a monopoly in that corridor; and 

20 (2) that ve're the railroad. 

21 JUDGE NELSON: So you need to persuade the 

22 Board of tvo things: (A) that there's a monopoly; and 

23 (B) that they should modify the outstanding agreement. 

24 MR. MULLINS: Or that they should not 

^ 25 impose the BN/Santa Fe settlement agreement as a — 
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JUDGE NELSON: As a — 

MR. MULLINS; — condition. 

JUDGE NELSON: Exactly, and leave that 

open f o r competitive bidding. 

MR. MULLINS: Correct. 

JUCX̂ E NELSON: So you need t o v i n on both 

of them. 

MR. MULLINS: That's r i g h t . 

JUDGE NELSOM: And who knows? Maybe you 

w i l l . 

MR. MULLINS: Maybe we w i l l , exactly. 

That's why we're spending millions of dollars. 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l r i g h t . I don't have 

judge l i k e l i h o o d of success on the merits. 

MR. MULLINS; Right. 

JUDGE NELSON: This i s discovery. A l l 

right, l e t ' s turn to the Applicants for nov. I s there 

anything else you vant to say right nov? 

MR. MULLINS: No. 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, l e t ' s here about a l l 

t h i s business of stipulation and see i f you're not 

prepared to move beyond that stipulation as to — 

assume there never vas a stipulation — as to vhy this 

dis«-overy shouldn't go on. 

Mr. Gulland, i s i t ? 
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MR. GULLAND: Gulland, yes. 

JUDGE NELSON; Yes. 

MR. GULLAND: Let me f i r s t say that I'm 

pinch-hitting for Mr. Ro?».ch — 

JUDGE NELSON: I figured. 

MR. GULLAND: — not because th i s i s not 

regarded as important, i t ' s regarded as very 

important. And Ms. Rinn of UP and Ms. Harris of SP 

wanted to be here, but this came up so suddenly, and 

i t was quite a surprise, that none of those three 

could rearrange their schedules. 

JUDGE NELSON: That's too bad because from 

the l a t t e r two at least, i f we get to the problems of 

burdens, we get some help i n how to deal with these 

records and f i l e s . 

MR. GULLAND: Well, i t ' s extraordinarily 

burdensome. Your Honor. And you knov, t h i s whole 

dispute i s kind of l i k e a horror movie monster. You 

knov, you think you've k i l l e d i t and i t ' s dead, in 

thi s case because of the stipulation that vas entered 

into, and then you find that i t comes alive again. 

And vhat they seem to be seeking here is 

discovery that vould enable them to prove the truth of 

the stipulation that the parties entered into. 

And ve do feel — 
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JUDGE NELSON: I t ' s a l i t t l e sharper than 

that, isn't i t ? 

MR. GULLAND: I t isn't, Your Honor. 

JUDGE NELSON: I t focuses on particular 

commodities — 

MR. GULLAND: I.et me just — 

JUDGE NELSON; — corridors, shippers and 

MR. GULLAND: No particular commodities. 

I f you look at that l i s t , there is no l i s t i n g of 

particular commodities. That's simply not true. 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, we could work one 

out. 

MR. GULLAND: The l i s t — the l i s t is — 

JUDGE NELSON; He says that i t deals vith 

three groups: grains, chemicals and coal. 

MR. GULLAND: Well as to grain, I think 

Your Honor is aware that, you know, 25 shipper f i l e s 

have been opened up. Utility files have been opened 

up. 

Twenty of the largest plastics f i l e s have 

been opened up in other sources of discovery. 

JUDGE NELSON: What I might do i s — i f I 

vanted to try to tighten this up i s ask Mr. Mullins to 

specify for each of those corridors vhat the leading 
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1 commodity is as he did with chemicals in the Houston 

2 to Nev Orleans. 

3 And we could cut through some of i t that 

4 way, so i t would be one commodity search for each 

5 corridor. One of the things I was thinking about — 

6 MR. GULLAND: I'm unable to address how 

7 that would affect the burden. 

8 JUDGE NELSON: I know i t , and I'm 

9 concerned about that — 

10 MR. GULLAND: And I apologize. 

11 JUDGE NELSON: — because we really need 

12 Ms. Rinn or Ms. Harris, or both, who have that 

13 knowledge of the file s . But let's worry about that i f 

14 we have to. 

15 But under your view, they've stipulated 

16 a l l of this away? 

17 MR. GULLAND: Well, this isn't — 

18 JUDGE NELSON: This is a non-issue? 

19 MR. GULLAND: This is not a technical 

20 argument. It's not a "gotcha" argument, Your Honor. 

21 Out of an abundance of charity, I assume that Mr. 

22 Mullins is unaware of the letter that Mr. Lubel wrote 

23 on January 25, 1996, the afternoon before the 

24 stipulation was entered. 

25 JUDGE NELSON: Is that in front of me 
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right now? 

MR. GULLAND: I t isn't. I want to show 

you a copy of i t wherein Mr. Lubel provides copies of 

this discovery. 

And as Mr. Roach says in his letter, that 

was not focused on — he was not aware of request 62 

and 63 at the time that the stipulation was entered 

into. 

JUDGE NELSON; Incidentally, since you're 

here for Mr. Roach, I always remind him that when you 

fax something in here at 1749, there's a chance that 

i t isn't going to get read until 0800 hours the next 

morning — 

MR. GULLAND: And we apologize — 

JUDGE NELSON: — which i s exactly what 

happened. So --

MR. GULLAND: We apologize for that. But 

this — thi s did come as a surprise, a.id we weren't 

alerted to the fact that there was going to be any 

request of this character made and — 

JUDGE NELSON; Well, no harm, no foul. I 

get in here at 8:00 and I did search th*? fax machine 

because my clerk had l e f t a note that she couldn't 

find anything on the fax. 

Ard there i s was, and I've read i t , so be 

NEAL R GROSS 

(208)2344433 

COURT REPORTERS ANO TRANSCRIBERS 

1323 RHOOE ISLANO AVENUE. N W. 

WASHINQTON. D C. 20006 (202) 234-4433 



imm 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1388 

i t . I see these paragraphs of the s t i p u l a t i o n . 

MR. GULLAND: But i^et me j u s t touch 

b r i e f l y on the background. Your Honor. 

Interrogatories 21 and 62 are i d e n t i c a l i n terms 

except that one covers — 21 covers 100 l i s t e d 

shippers and 62 covers 50. 

But they i d e n t i c a l l y , i n i d e n t i c a l terms, 

request every instance of a request made by a shipper 

for lower rates i n order to compete with a r i v a l that 

i s located on the l i n e s of another applicant. That's 

the g i s t of 21 and 62. 

S i m i l a r l y , 22 and 63 are i d e n t i c a l and 

inquire i n t o whether any shipper ever sought lower 

rates or better service to match rates of service 

that's provided by another operator. 

These are very general i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s . 

They are spe c i f i e d t o the l i m i t e d extent th a t they 

i d e n t i f y p a r t i c u l a r shippers and p a r t i c u l a r corridors. 

But there i s no p a r t i c u l a r category of commodity. 

JUDGE NELSON: And there's a sentence 

added vhich refers to the limiting attachments. 

MR. GULLAND: Correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: And aside from that 

sentence, are the interrogatories the sane in each 

case? 
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MR. GULLAND: Yes. And aside from the 

difference in numbers of the shippers: 100 on the one 

hand versus 50 on the other. 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes. 

MR. GULLAND: And you go — i f you went 

back and looked at the transcript of the December 20th 

discovery conference, there are almost 40 pages of 

dialogue about these requests. 

At that time, i t wasn't limited yet to 

100. The problem that the Union Pacific and the 

Southern Pacific people were identifying was basically 

this: i t ' s a needle in a haystack. 

Because you've got — bvsn when you 

identify a particular shipper, multiple files spread 

out around the country assigned to different marketing 

personnel, depending on the commodity involved. 

And i t doesn't help to specify corridors 

because of the nature of the f i l e system. I t i s just 

a mass of doc\imentary material. 

And the problem was combing through a l l of 

this documentary material to find that needle in the 

haystack. 

You probably knov an avful lot — 

JUDGE NELSON: We've been through that 

problem on several occasions. 
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1 MR. GULLAND: Exactly. You know about 

2 that a lot better than I do because you've heard Ms. 

3 Rinn and Ms. Harris address the problem of their 

4 files. 

5 That's why the stipulation that was 

6 entered into was so important, because i t gave them 

7 what they wanted. 

8 True, Mr. Mullins says, "Well, i t was 

9 merely a general stipulation, not a specific 

10 stipulation regarding these 50 shippers." 

11 Well with a l l respect, i t was a specific 

12 stipulation with respect to the 100 shippers that were 

13 covered by the old interrogatories 21 and 22. And 

14 there is no reason in principle why i t is any less a 

15 specific governing stipulation simply because they are 

16 trying to now proceed under interrogatories 62 and 63, 

17 which include an awful lot of the same shippers. 

18 JUDGE NELSON: Oh no, in a l l fairness, the 

19 stipulation doesn't refer to interrogatories 62 and 

20 63, or to vaiving other objections or other problems. 

21 It ' s — i t doesn't have any — by its terms, any such 

22 effect. 

23 MR. GULLAND: Well until this moming, 

24 they had never nade the argument that the stipulation 

25 was not meant to — 
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1 JUDGE NELSON: You and Mr. Roach know how 

2 to do those things and you — 

3 MR. GULLAND: We didn't know that — 

4 JUDGE NELSON: — didn't do that. Well, 

5 they say — 

6 MR. GULLAND: We didn't know there was 62 

7 and 63. 

8 JUDGE NELSON: They say that they served 

9 62 and 63 on January Ilth, and that the stipulation 

10 was entered on January 26th. 

11 MR. GULLAND: But Your Honor, the letter 

12 that I submitted to you from Mr. Lubel of KCS 

13 acknowledges that he's serving us on the 25th. 

14 That's why I said that I was being 

15 charitable to Mr. Mullins when he represented to you 

16 that we had been served on January Ilth. 

17 I was being charitable assuming that he 

18 did not knov the true fact. 

19 MR. NORTON: Your Honor, i f I might just 

20 add because — 

21 JUDGE KELSON: Well, vhy don't ve get this 

22 fact clear? So, Mr. Gulland says that interrogatories 

23 62 and 63 vere not in hand until January 25tb — 

24 MR. GULLAND: That's correct. 

25 JUDGE NELSON: — the day before the 
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Stipulation was entered. 

MR. GULLAND; And i t was part of a massive 

material that daily accumulates on our desks. And Mr. 

Roach — I ' l l l et Mr. Norton speak for himself. But 

Mr. Roach did not focus on 62 and 63 when he entered 

into this stipulation. 

JUDGE NELSON; I see, the stipulation came 

not realizing that 62 and 63 had come in that day or 

the day before. 

MR. GULLAND: Exactly. And then a week 

later, we — 

JUDGE NELSON: I can understand that 

better — 

MR. GULLAND; — we submitted our response 

to 62 and 63 and said, "Well, that's covered by the 

stipulation." 

JUDGE NELSON; Now I understand. That 

could be just the kind of thing I could do. 

MR. GULLAND: And we didn't near — ve 

didn't hear word one about i t , about th i s problem — 

JUDGE NELSON: Let's see i f ve can get the 

date clearer nere. Mr. Mullins, can you help us on 

this? Mr. Gulland contends that he didn't receive 62 

and 63 unt i l sometime on January 25th. 

I s that right or i s that wrong? 
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MR. MULLINS: Well, I don't know whether 

i t ' s r i g h t or wrong. I can accept t h e i r notion t h a t 

they d id not get i t on January the i l t h . Your Honor, 

what's important here though i s that we have a 

c e r t i f i e d stamp copy that these were f i l e d at the ICC 

on January I l t h , public notice. 

Whether or not they received them or not 

u n t i l the 25th, they were on constructive public 

notice t h a t on January I l t h of f i l i n g . They're a b i g 

law f i r m . They send somebody down to the document — 

to the public f i l i n g room every single day t o see what 

was f i l e d . 

They knew they were f i l e d . In fact, the 

reason why we sent them that letter was because three 

days before we sent them t h a t l e t t e r , Mr. Norton 

called us and said, "Hey, we understand you f i l e d 

discovery on January i l t h . We don't have a copy." 

Well, how did they knov ve had f i l e d i t ? 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l right, before I get to 

Mr. Norton then, l e t me see i f I understand i t . There 

wc« notice in the form of service upon the ICC or 

Service Transportation Board, i t vould have been at 

that point, of the interrogatories. 

But for one reason or another, they didn't 

get in the hands of Mr. Roach, or also Mr. Cunningham 
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1 according to t h i s l e t t e r , u n t i l sometime on January 

2 25th. 

3 There's a l e t t e r from Mr. Lubel dated 

4 January 25th to Mr. Roach and Mr. Cunningham which 

5 says, "Gentlemen, we understand that KCS's t h i r d 

6 discovery requests, KCS-14, were not received. And we 

7 therefore faxed you a copy e a r l i e r today." 

8 "Since KCS-15 was served on that same day, 

9 we also faxed you a copy i n the event th a t document 

10 sufferFJ the same fate as KCS-14." 

11 " F i n a l l y , enclosed i s a disk containing 

12 these two documents, together with KCS 16, which was 

13 telecopied t o you yesterday. Sincerely yours," and 

14 i t ' s signed "Alan." 

15 So i f those are the facts, then the 

16 argument i s tha t the s t i p u l a t i o n — 

17 MR. MULLINS: Your Honor, i f I can — i f 

18 I can — 

19 JUDGE NELSON: — can't be read — how do 

20 you read the s t i p u l a t i o n ? 

21 MR. GULLAND: The r e a l argument, Your 

22 Honor, i s ~ 

23 JUDGE NELSON: No, l e t me get Mr. Mullins 

24 f i r s t . 

25 MR. MULLINS: Okay, let me — 
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JUDGE NELSON: Then I want to get over to 

SP for a moment. 

MR. MULLINS: Even under their own facts, 

they received a copy on the 25th, the morning of the 

25th. 

JUDGE NELSON: And therefore? 

MR. MULLINS; And therefore, the 

stipulation which was entered into on the 26th, even 

under their own facts, they had an entire day to look 

at the interrogatories. 

And they could have come to you. Your 

Honor, and said, "By the way, stipulation 21 and 22, 

that also covers interrogatories 62 and 63." 

JUDGE NELSON; So i t ' s your point i s that 

whether by constructive notice or actual notice, they 

could have and should have recited that the 

stipulation covered 62 and 63. 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

JUDGE NELSON: They didn't do so and 

therefore, they cannot nov be heard from — 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. 

JUDGE NELSON: — to make that assertion. 

MR. MULLINS: Absolutely. And ve vould 

have objected i f they had tr i e d to apply i t to 62 and 

63. 
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1 JUDGE NELSON: And so the case i s simply 

2 one of let's get down to what the relevant burdens are 

3 and — 

4 MR. MULLINS: Correct. 

5 JUDGE NELSON: — scia what we do with 

i 
6 them. 

i 
7 MR. MULLINS: That's correct. i 
8 JUDGE NELSON: Al l right. Mr. Norton, i 

9 what do you say now? 
i 

10 MR. NORTON: Well, Your Honor, i f I might 

11 just address the factual sequence? 

• 
12 JUDGE NELSON: Yes s i r . 

f 

13 MR. NORTON; I was involved in i t . I 

14 believe i t was on the 23rd — i t vas, I think, the day 

15 before we got — we actually received the third set 

16 that we got the fourth set late at night. \ 

17 And that triggered the question well, what 

18 — where i s the third set? And we called — 

19 JUDGE NELSON: The third set contained 62 

20 and 63? 

21 MR. NORTON: Yes. 

22 •JUDGE NELSON: A l l right. i 

23 MR. NORTON: We called KCS. We called Mr. 

24 Mullins and asked vhat vas going on and said ve never 

25 got i t . And apparently Covington had raised the same 
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question. 

He said he would fax a copy over. And 

eventually at the end of the day, we received a copy. 

I don't know that I had even seen i t 

before — certainly before the stipulation that was — 

JUDGE NELSON: Does Mr. Lubel operate out 

of the Atlanta office primarily? 

MR. MULLINS: In this case, no. Your 

Honor. He's — he's here every single week, Monday 

through Friday. 

JUDGE NELSON: So a l l of the work was done 

here in Washington? 

MP.. MULLINS: That is correct. Your Honor. 

JUDGE NELSON: All right. 

MR. NORTON; At the time that we were — 

there was an exchange of correspondence relating to 

the stipulation that was entered on the morning — at 

the hearing on the 26th. 

And when that was being prepared, our 

letter proposing the stipulation vas being prepared, 

ve did noU knov vhat vas in 62 and 63. 

And ve — as Mr. Roach's letter indicated, 

ve hadn't focused on i t . And indeed, even after 

receiving i t , ve didn't focus on the fact that i t 

there vas a different universe of shippers than vere 
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covered by their "revised version of 21 and 22" that 

we were specifically addressing at that hearing on the 

26th. 

I t i s inconceivable that we would have — 

had we realized what was covered by 62 and 63 and that 

i t was thought to be different in some meaningful way 

and in addition to what had been served previously, 

that we would have gone forward with the stipulation 

disposing of the one without — without not also 

disposing of the other. 

And then when we responded, as Mr. Gulland 

was, I think, about to indicate — when we responded 

to the third set, our response to 62 and 63 — and 

this was back in early February — said this i s — not 

only the same objections about burden et cetera, but 

that this i s covered by the stipulation. 

And that's the last we heard of i t . 

Nov, this i s not necessarily — th i s i s 

not a technical arg\iment that, you knov — as Mr. 

Gulland said, "this i s not a 'gotcha' situation." 

The aamm argxunents that made i t 

appropriate to enter into that stipulation because of 

the burdens involved, and the seune reasons that led 

Your Honor to c a l l for a narrovJng of the requests, 

apply to these as much as to the e a r l i e r version 
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originally — 

JUDGE NELSON; To a lesser degree. You 

must — he's identified particular corridors and he's 

identified particular shippers. 

MR. NORTON: Well, no more particular that 

what was involved previously. And the shippers is 

just a change in number. I t is s t i l l — while 50 is 

fewer than 100 ~ 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes. 

MR. NORTON: — i t is S t i l l enormously 

burdensome. Because as the testimony — the 

explanations by Ms. Rinn and Ms. Harris, I think, 

revealed at the fi r s t time this was addressed, to 

answer those questions, you have to go through the 

shipper f i l e s . 

And i t is a very voluminous — 

JUDGE NELSON: Why is Ms. Harris not here, 

incidentally? 

MR. NORTON: The same reason. We — ve 

vere here — 

JUDGE NELSON: You knev about this 

dispute. You knew about this conference. And you 

knov that, she's important vhen i t comes to describing 

burdens. 

MR. NORTON: Your Honor, ve vere here 
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Tuesday. 

JUDGE NELSON; Well, then you know that I 

tend to rely on here. 

MR. NORTON: I understand — 

JUDGE NELSON: So why isn't she here? 

MR. NORTON: She was not able — le t me 

explain. We were here Tuesday. At that time, KCS 

indicated that they did not have anything that they 

knew of to put on the agenda this morning. 

JUDGE NELSON: I see. 

MR. NORTON: Mr. — 

JUDGE NELSON: So you didn't really knov 

until Wednesday late. 

MR. NORTON; We got the letter late 

Wednesday. And at that point, you knov, i t ' s 

d i f f i c u l t from the West Coast to make the necessary 

arrangements and — 

JUDGE NELSON: A l l right, I understand 

that. 

MR. NORTON: — the child care, and she 

just couldn't do i t . We vould l i k e to have her here 

too, and I knov UP vould l i k e to have Ms. Rinn here as 

v e i l . 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, I vasn't going to get 

after Mr. 

(208)2344433 
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because he i s already i n a p i n c h - h i t t i n g r o l e . 

But you're i n the f r o n t l i n e here, so I 

thoughc — 

MR. NORTON: Oh, she ~ i f — 

JUDGE NELSON; — that you're i n a 

posit i o n to take i t . 

MR. GULLAND: May I say one other thing. 

Your Honor? With a l l respect t o Mr. Mullins, the 

correspondence of Mr. Lubel on February seventh and 

February 21 at least i m p l i c i t l y , and almost 

e x p l i c i t l y , r e f l e c t Mr. Lubel's understanding that the 

s t i p u l a t i o n also applied t o 62. 

JUDGE NELSON: Which l e t t e r are you 

r e f e r r i n g to? 

MR. GULLAND; This i s the Troutman Sanders 

letter of February 21, which has attached to i t the 

Troutman Sanders le t t e r of February seventh. 

I t ' s a letter — the l e t t e r was copied to 

you, February 21, in which they notified Applicants of 

their — 

JUDGE NELSON: That invokes this 

conference? 

MR. GULLAND: — intention to raise the 

issue. That's correct. 

(208)2344433 
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there do you say that explicitly or implicitly — 

MR. GULLAND: Wei], i f you go to the 

attachment f i r s t , which i s the letter of February 

seventh — 

(Pause.) 

IIR. GULLAND; No, I'm sorry. I'm told 

that you may be looking at the wrong let t e r . I have -

(Pause.) 

JUDGE NELSON: I have a let t e r from Mr. 

Lubel dated February 21 about raising this issue. I t 

refers to a let t e r of February seventh — 

MR. GULLAND: I t should have been 

attached. 

JUDGE NELSON: — which I have, which i s 

a one-page item. 

MR. GULLAND: Yes s i r . 

JUDGE I.'ELSON: So I have both of these. 

Nov vhat aa I supposed to be reading? F i r s t , on the 

letter of February 21, vhat paragraph? 

MR. GULLAND: Well, I'd go f i r s t to the 

lett e r oi' February seventh. 

JUDGE NELSON: Yes s i r . 

MR. GULLAND: And in that l e t t e r , Mr. 

Lubel says, "In light of the document," vhich seems to 
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1 indicate that there was a search for information on 

2 behalf of KCS, "we renew our request f o r information 

3 concerning the evidence." 

4 Mr. Norton can address t h i s . The argument 

5 was, and you can see i t i n the l e t t e r of February 21st 

6 that's attached t o the l e t t e r of February the seventh, 

7 that there — there was an ind i c a t i o n t h a t Applicants 

8 had indeed already conducted some search f o r the 

9 information that was covered by 62 and (>3. 

10 So that the burden problems previously 

11 addressed were no longer an obstacle. And you see the 

12 footnote on the f i r s t page of *̂ he l e t t e r of February 

13 21: "The s t i p u l a t i o n i s t o KCS inte r r o g a t o r i e s 21 and 

14 22, involving a d i f f e r e n t group of shippers, was 

15 entered into i n reliance of Applicants' burdensomeness 

16 objection and without knowledge th a t searches f o r t h i s 

17 information had already been conducted and bom 

18 f r u i t . " 

19 Your Honor, i f searches f o r t h i s 

20 information had already been conducted and born f r u i t , 

21 that information vould be provided. There vould be no 

22 problem vith — 

23 JUDGE NELSON: What i s he referring to? 

24 MR. GULLAND: I ' l l l e t Mr. Norton — 

25 JUDGE NELSON: That inadvertent turnover? 
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MR. GULLAND: Yes. 

MR. NORTON: Yes, Your Honor. 

JUDGE NELSON: I've never seen that since 

MR. NORTON: Well, l e t me — 

JUDGE NELSON; — destroyed, wasn't i t ? 

MR. NORTON; Well, we have thoughts — 

MR. MULLINS; We have a copy i f you want 

to see i t . 

MR. NORTON; Let me describe — let me 

explain the situation. The document in question — 

and there is a reference to two documents, but i t ' s 

really the same one that was copied twice I think — 

was a transmittal — cover transmittal sheet that was 

from the SP people who are gathering the shipper files 

together to send to counsel. 

As you recall, the way that SP vent at i t s 

discovery requests at the early stage vas to copy the 

shipper files for the 150 largest shippers, vhich is 

an enormous undertaking. 

And this vas before ve got to the stage of 

trying to respond to specific requests that, you knov, 

vere not involved in the shipper f i l e s . 

One of those cover sheets vas included 

inadvertently in the shipper f i l e as i t vas copied and 
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put in the depository. 

And that has a comment on i t from one of 

the sales people about — that a particular company 

which produces a chemical at locations i n Texas and 

Louisiana; "We must keep them competitive with 

producers of the same commodities which are located on 

UP lines." 

That is the commodity — the comment that 

was included in the cover sheet. 

The purpose of these — of the search that 

was being conducted at that point was not to go and 

review the f i l e s and to extract t h i s information. The 

purpose was to get the f i l e s to see hov we could 

respond. 

And the comments wero not to e l i c i t 

substantive comments, but comments about the 

documents. You knov, are there privilege issues or 

other sensitive — confidentiality problems that ve 

need to focus on in producing the documents? 

So this vas not part of a substantive 

search to try to respond to the particular information 

of 21 and 22. 

The response to 21 and 22 vas across the 

board to produce the shipper f i l e s . And that'i vhat 

this transmitted, vas some shipper f i l e s from an 
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Office i->. Blue Bell, Pennsylvania. 

So i t i s incorrect, and I explained thi s 

to Mr. Mullins and Mr. Lubel yesterday. I t i s 

incorrect to drav from this document the inference 

that we have already done the search that would permit 

us readily to answer either 21 and 22 or 62 and 63. 

Your Honor, I just — I was surprised to 

see this referenced because we had understood that 

they had agreed to either — 

JUDGE NELSON; Okay, l e t me get back to 

Mr. Gulland who was taking the view that the l e t t e r of 

February seventh e x p l i c i t l y or i m p l i c i t l y acknow.ledged 

that the stipulation had disposed of interrogatory 62 

and 63. Wasn't that your position? 

MR. GULLAND; My position i s that the 

let t e r s of February 7 and 21 ru f l e c t , I think pretty 

clearly, the notion that they're "renewing" — 

JUDGE NELSON: Oh, the word "renew." 

MR. GULLAND: Well, l e t me f i n i s h . 

They're reneving the 62 and 63 because contrary to the 

understanding they had vhen they entered into the 

stipulation goveming 21 and 22, they knov believed, 

incorrectly ve vould say, that the vork had 

substantially been done so that the burdensome problem 

no longer existed. 
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And accordingly — 

JUDGE NELSON; And had i t not been laid to 

rest, there would have been nothing to renew. 

MR. GULLAND: That's exactly — 

JUDGE NELSON: The word renew" itself 

suggested i t was a dead matter, or so they anderstood? 

MR. GULLAND; Right. 

JUDGE NELSON; Well, I appreciate that 

argument as a lawyer. It's good work. 

MR. MULLINS: I — can I — 

JUDGE NELSON: Let's see how far i t goes. 

MR. MULLINS; Can I address that. Your 

Honor? 

JUDGE NELSON: Of course. 

MR. MULLINS: They're tirying to confuse 

two issues here. The issues are the answers to 

interrogatories 21 and 22 versus the answers to 

interrogatories 62 and 63. 

They are tvo separate issues. The burden 

that they speak about, the document that Mr. Norton 

just referred to, vhich i s no longer — he's brought 

i t into the record, ' I suggest you look at i t — 

goes to vhether or not they ansvered 21 and 22. 

And that's a vhole separate argvuent jUsout 

vhether or not they've already got ansvers to 21 and 
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And I suggest that you look at the 

document for that purpose. 

But more importantly, i t ' s interesting 

they say that we've waived this because of the 

February seventh letter, yet they didn't object to 

interrogatories 62 and 63 unt i l February ninth, two 

days after the seventh le t t e r . 

JUDGE NELSON: What did they say then? 

MR. MULLINS; That's when they f i l e d their 

response to the third discovery request. So 

technically, i t wasn't bright to brig i t in front of 

Judge Nelson until they had already objected on 

February ninth. 

So we had no right to bring i t to you 

until their objection. 

JUDGE NELSON: And where i s that 

objection? 

MR. MULLINS: That's right here, and that 

i s their response to our third discovery request. 

JUDGE NELSON: I t ' s probably vhat I'm 

looking at. Okay, I have i t . 

MR. MULLINS: Okay. 

J»'.)CE NELSON: I t ' s vhere they assert the 

stipulation. 

NEAL R. GROSS 
COURT REPORTERS ANO TRANSCRIBCRS 

1323 RHOOC ISLANO AVCNUC N.W. 

(208) 2344433 WASHINQTON. O.C 20006 (208) 2344433 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

m 

1409 

MR. MULLINS: February ninth. So until 

they '-bjected, we had no right to bring this iss«.'e in 

front of you on 62 and 63. 

JUDGE NELSON; Let me ask this, Mr. 

B i l l i e l . I see you in the room. The claim is made 

here that this is really going to — let's get through 

the stipulation for a moment as to the merits, that 

al"*. this has to do with an attempt to show a dimmed 

show of competition and thereby the need for a 

condition which the Board would oppose which wjuld ir 

some way or another open up competition, open i t up 

for other railroads to try to come in there to be the 

saving grace competitor. 

Now that sounds to me like Department of 

Justice business. What do say about the merits of a l l 

that vis a vis this request? 

MR. BILLIEL: Well, I'm not addressing the 

burden issue at a l l . But I think on the pure merits 

issues, the importance of this information to the 

competitive analysis, I think Mr. Mullins is 

absolutely, 100 percent correct. 

JUDGE NELSOM: I f ve could get i t dovm to 

some vorkable basis for the Applicants, vould the 

Depaxrtment vant to see this information? 

MR. BILLIEL: Yes. In fact, the 

(2Q8)23444» 

NEAL R. GROSS 
COURT RCPORTERS ANO TRANSCRIBCRS 

1323 RHOOC ISLANO AVENUC. N.W. 

WASHINllTON. O.C. 20006 
(202) 2344433 



1410 

1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Applicants are working on providing us with a similar 

JUDGE NELSON: I'm sorry, I didn't hear 

you. 

MR. BILLIEL: In fact, we've been trying 

to get similar information, in fact, the Applicants 

have provided some to us. But you know, we are — we 

also rely heavily nn the discovery of other parties 

who analyze particular corridors they're interested in 

more intensely — 

JUDGE NELSON: Well, I know that you don't 

necessarily always attend every one of these 

conferences. 

And so when I see you here, I have to draw 

the inference that you have an interest in this one. 

MR. BILLIEL; Right. Well, actually the 

thing that peaked — the particular thing that peaked 

my interest was the suggestion. I have not seen this 

document before — that there was some indication that 

there was — had been a search already done, that 

there vas some existing information ve might not have 

been given access to vhich i s — 

7VJ3GE NELSON: Well, should I count you as 

supporting this discovery, assuming ve get through 

this problem of the stipulation? 
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MR. GULLAND: I 11 1ust say one thing 

about that. The fundamental problem i s that, you 

knov, KCS talks about these conditions and their 

interest in the routes in question. 

But they haven't file d any notification 

that they've sought any t r a f f i c rights covering any of 

these routes. 

I mean, i f ve were in another context, I 

would say there's a real standing problem on KCS's 

request for this information. 

MR. MULLINS; Your Honor, he i s — he i s 

giving technical arguments here. We f i l e d a notice on 

January ninth saying that we're requesting conditions. 

And we li s t e d the corridors that we want the 

Commission to order divestiture of track and open i t 

up to a bidding process, so — 

JUDGE NELSON: Are they any of these 

corridors? 

MR. MULLINS: They are not a l l of those 

corridors, but they are certainly — some of those 

corridors are included. Yes, that's correct. 

JUDGE NELSON: What do we have here, one, 

tvo, three, four, five, six — v e i l , I t e l l you vith 

regard to the stipulation, I'm going to rule that — 

I think I have discretion as to vhether to treat t h i s 
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stipulation as precluding discovery on interrogatory 

62 and 63. 

I don't know of any rule of law in the 

U.S. Constitution or the Interstate Commerce Act that 

commands that I treat a stipulation as to 

interrogatories 21 and 22 as disposing of 62 and 63. 

So I think it's a discretionary question. 

And I'm going to exercise my discretion in favor of 

discovery here against the Applicants on the theory 

that i f they knew about interrogatories 62 and 63, 

they certainly didn't mention them in the stipulation. 

And i f they didn't know about them, i t ' s 

even harder for me to understand that a stipulation is 

supposed to dispose of something about which they 

didn't even know. 

Apart from the technicalities of the 

wording of the stipulation, I am influenced by the 

claim that discovery here goes to the heart of the 

need, to the assertion that there will be need for the 

impoiition of conditions necessary to preserve or 

enhance competition, and that this, i f i t proves 

successful, v i l l help lead the KCS dovn that path. 

I am also influenced by the Department of 

Justice's attendance here t(day, vhich I note they 

don't alvays send a representative to one of these 
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conferences and Mr. B i l l i e l ' s comments in support of 

this discovery. 

So I'm going to direct that some discovery 

go forvard. The question nov is hov to tailor this 

and hov to focus i t £.0 that i t is a manageable task. 

And there are a couple of things ve could 

do. One is to try to hack through some of i t now. 

The other is to reconvene when we can have Ms. Rinn 

and Ms. Harris here and get their assistance. 

And I am open to the suggestio of the 

Applicants as to how they want to proceed, nov knowing 

that you're going to have to make some discovery vith 

regard to 62 and 63. 

And I want to work and get i t in some 

livable shape. How do you want to proceed? Do you 

want to try nd thrash out some boundaries nov or do 

you want to do i t vhen ve can have more time? 

And i f you vant to take a brief recess to 

have time to confer vith each other or make phone 

call s , that's a l l right too. 

Do you vant to take a recess for, say, 

five or ten minutes? 

MR. MULLINS: Your Honor, can I address 

the burden issue before ve get to that issue, because 

I have some things to say about the burden issue? And 
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JUDGE NELSON: Well, we haven't yet heard 

from the Applicants. I t ' s their burden. I'm 

convinced from previous showings that this i s not 

easy. And I want to put the b a l l i n their hands right 

now. 

Now — right now, you'va got the 

discovery. Keep talking, you can t a l k yourself out of 

i t . 

MR. MULLINS: I don't want to do that. 

JUDGE NELSON: My advice to you is to s i t 

down and let's see what the Applicants want to do i n 

terms of helping to shape the record regarding the 

burden. 

You'll have plenty of time, Mr. Mullins, 

to respond to whatever they have to say about the 

burden, including the opportunity to show by whatever 

way you want chat i t ' s phony, that there i s no burden, 

that the vork has already been done, vhatever i t may 

be. 

MR. GULLAND: Your Honor, I knov from — 

JUDGE NELSON: Hov do you vant to proceed? 

MR. GULLAND: For my part, I vould not 

feel comfortable proceeding in the absence of Ms. 

Rinn. And Mr. Norton can address vhether he vould in 
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the absence of Ms. Harris. 

MR. NORTON: Your Honor, I think the 

suggestion of deferring resolution of the burden side 

of i t makes good sense. 

In the meantime, ve may be able to work 

with the other side. 

JUDGE NELSONS Exactly. The down side of 

this i s we would put the whole thing off for period 

of time, a maximvuL of one week. 

MR. NORTON; I think under the 

circumstances — 

JUDGE NELSON; That hinders tbe 

discoverers. 

MR. NORTON: Well, Your Honor, i t doesn't 

— they have had access to this type of evidence from 

shipper f i l e s that we've produced. They've got the 

ten plastics shippers. They've got the 25 grain 

shippers. 

MR. MULLINS: The 25 grain shippers were 

only in Central Kansas and did not cover any of the 

corridors l i s t e d in the — 

MR. NORTON: But i f there were evidence of 

this nature that they could have found in those f i l e s , 

we would have heard about i t . 

So I mean, they're not totally deprived. 
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And I think i t makes good sense because we're — 

neither of us can address the burden question — 

JUDGE NELSON: Is there a way of doing 

this any quicker because the time is running on a l l 

this now so that we don'- to wait a week. 

MR. MULLINS: Can I suggest that we can 

schedule i t for Wednesday or Monday or something? And 

then we work — we work for the rest of the day, maybe 

over the weekend, to try to resolve i t . And then we 

convene back here on Monday. 

JUDGE NELSON: That's reasonable i f those 

lawyers are available. Can you check with them? 

MR. NORTON: I think we have to — 

JUDGE NELSON: We're at — it ' s what, 7:30 

out there now? 

MR. NORTON: I can't — 

JUDGE NELSON: Eight-thirty in Omaha. 

MR. NORTON: I can't reach anyone. I know 

Ms. Harris i s not accessible at the noment. 

JUDGE NELSON: What does :̂ he come in, 

about nine o'clock there? 

MR. NORTON: I believe that's — 

JUDGE NELSON: Tvelve o'clock our time. 

MR. NORTON: Yes. Why don't ve — vhy 

don't ve do this? We could consult vith them about 
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mutual a v a i l a b i l i t y , because we need to get both of 

them here at the same time, and then with an eye 

toward trying to work a day that w i l l be sometime 

sooner than next Friday? 

And then we'll — 

JUDGE NELSON: How about i f we have a 

conference c a l l this afternoon? 

MR. GULLAND: For purposes of scheduling? 

JUDGE NELSON: With Mr. Mullins, Mr. 

Gulland, Mr. Norton and me? 

MR. NORTON; Sure. 

MR. MULLINS: That's fine. Your Honor. 

MR. NORTON; What time would you l i k e to 

do i t . Your Honor? 

JUDGE NELSON: Hov i s earlier rather than 

late r , 3:00? 

MR. MULLINS: Three o'clock? 

MR. NORTON: That's fine. 

JUDGE NELSON: All right, let's go off the 

record for a moment. 

(Whereupon, the proceedings vent o f f the 

record at 10:'l3 a.m. and resumed at 10:44 a.m.) 

JUDGE NELSON: On the record. We've 

agreed f i r s t of a l l to a telephone conference c a l l 

this afternoon at 3:00 p.m. eastem vhen ve'll have on 
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1 the line Mr. Gulland, Mr. Norton, Mr. Mullins and me, 

2 where we w i l l discuss the procedural status of this 

3 request of t h i s discovery pertaining to 

4 interrogatories 62 and 63. 

5 In the meantime, counw>el has agreed to 

6 confer among themselves in an attempt to work out some 

7 limitations. And Mr. Gulland and Mr. Norton are going 

8 to be conferring with Ms. Rinn and Ms. Harris, 

9 respectively, to ascertain whatever they want to learn 

10 i n terms of burdens and in terms of the a v a i l a b i l i t y 

11 of those two lawyers to be here to assist us, sooner 

12 rather than later. 

13 I f there has to be a resolution by me, I'd 

14 rather move i t up because time i s ):\ipning on the 

15 Intervenors, and I want them to get t h i s material 

16 sooner rather than later, and not have to wait u n t i l 

17 next Friday necessarily. 

18 I did explain to a l l counsel that I'm in 

19 hearings a l l next veek in a gas pipeline case. And so 

20 I v i l l try to squeeze you a l l in probably before those 

21 hearings and see vhere ve go vith that. 

22 But for these purposes, I'm going to have 

23 to put you :'n second place. Tney've been vaiting for 

24 a long time in a dispute of over $400 million that 

25 they want to get adjudicated. And I owe them that 
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I hope they read this transcript and see 

that. 

But we'll — we'll work out a way of 

juggling in and around the schedule of that case. 

Any other comments or questions before we 

adjourn? A l l right, that concludes this conference 

and I w i l l speak to counsel this afternoon at 3:00 

p.m. eastern. Thank you. 

(Whereupon, the discovery conference was 

concluded at 10:47 a.m.) 
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